
i

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
PENNS PLACE
PETERSFIELD
HAMPSHIRE 
GU31 4EX

Telephone: 01730 266551
Website: www.easthants.gov.uk

CABINET AGENDA

Date: Thursday 7 September 2017  

Time: 3.00 pm

Venue: Council Chamber, Penns Place, Petersfield, GU31 4EX

Membership: Councillor R Millard (Chairman)

Councillors F Cowper (Vice-Chairman), J Butler, A Carew, T Costigan, A Glass, 
B Mouland, G Shepherd, I Thomas and G Watts

The business to be transacted is set out below: 

Nick Leach
Monitoring Officer

Date of Publication: 30 August 2017

Contact Officer: Penny Milne 023 9244 6234
Email:  penny.milne@easthants.gov.uk



ii

Page

PART 1 (Items open for public attendance)

1 Apologies for Absence  

To receive apologies for absence. 

2 Chairman's Announcements  

To receive any announcements the Chairman may wish to make for 
information. 

3 Minutes  

To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 29 
June 2017 (attached). 

1 - 4

4 Declarations of Interest  

To receive and record any declarations of interest from members 
present in respect of any of the various matters on the agenda for this 
meeting. 

5 Delegated Decisions  

To note the attached Decision taken by the Leader in accordance 
with the Scheme of Delegations:

(1) Commissioning Advice Services – Award of Contract

To award a two-year contract to East Hampshire Citizens 
Advice with effect from 31 August 2017.  

(Note:  Appendix A to this report is not for publication under 
Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) of the 
Local Government Act 1972.  (Paragraph 3 - Information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information). The 
Cabinet will need to resolve to exclude the Press and Public if 
members wish to discuss Appendix A at the meeting). 

5 - 22

Deputy Leader, Finance and Whitehill & Bordon Portfolio

6 Local Discretionary Business Rate Relief Scheme  

To seek approval of the new Local Business Rate Relief Scheme. 

23 - 30



iii

PART 2 (Confidential Items - closed to the public)

None.



iv

GENERAL INFORMATION

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR 
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, 
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 01730 234073.

Internet

This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the East 
Hampshire District Council website: www.easthants.gov.uk

Public Attendance and Participation

Members of the public are welcome to attend and observe the meetings. 
Many of the Council’s meetings allow the public to make deputations on 
matters included in the agenda. Rules govern this procedure and for further 
information please get in touch with the contact officer for this agenda. 

Disabled Access

All meeting venues have full access and facilities for the disabled.

Emergency Procedure

Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits 
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will 
sound.

PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY.

DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO.

No Smoking Policy

All meeting venues operate a no smoking policy on all premises and ground

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/


v





1
 CABINET

29 June 2017

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

At a meeting of the Cabinet held on 29 June 2017

Present 

Councillor: R Millard (Chairman)

Councillors: F Cowper (Vice-Chairman), J Butler, A Carew, T Costigan, A Glass, 
B Mouland, G Shepherd, I Thomas and G Watts

31 Apologies for Absence 

There were no apologies for absence.

32 Chairman's Announcements 

There were no matters the Chairman wished to report.

33 Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 25 May 2017 were approved 
as a correct record.

34 Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest from any of the members present.

35 Financial Outturn 2016-17 

The Deputy Leader presented a report to Cabinet setting out the financial 
outturn position as at 31 March 2017.

RESOLVED that

(1) The Outturn position be noted;

(2) The Carry Forward bids as set out in the report be approved; and

(3) Funding be set aside as set out in the report to continue the Cabinet 
Approved Grants scheme.

36 Wheels to Work 

Councillor Butler presented a report to Cabinet setting out proposed future 
funding arrangements for the Wheels to Work Scheme operating across East 
Hampshire.



2
 CABINET

29 June 2017

RESOLVED that East Hampshire District Council approves funding of 
£16,517.80 for two years towards the Wheels to Work scheme, covering the 
period 1 August 2017 to 31 July 2019.

37 Revised Safeguarding Policy for East Hampshire 

Councillor Butler presented a report to Cabinet setting out a revised 
Safeguarding Policy for East Hampshire District Council, setting out how the 
Council proposes to safeguard children, young people and vulnerable adults 
and protect from harm.

In response to a Cabinet member an assurance was given that comprehensive 
training would be given to both officers and Councillors on identifying and 
responding to new and emerging challenges within the safeguarding 
environment. 

RESOLVED that the revised policy be approved and adopted.

38 Exclusion of the Press and Public 

RESOLVED that the press and the public be excluded from the meeting during 
the consideration of the following item as:-

(i) it was likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, or the 
nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public were present 
during that item there would be disclosure to them of exempt information 
as specified in paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A (as amended) to 
the Local Government Act 1972; and

(ii) in all circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

The items to be considered were exempt under Paragraph 3 – Information
relating to the financial affairs or business affairs of any particular person
(including the Authority holding that information).

39 Delegated Decisions (Exempt) 

RESOLVED that the following exempt decisions be noted:

(1) Outline proposal for Property Acquisition as set out in the exempt report; 
and

(2) Whitehill and Bordon Leisure Centre.

In noting the delegated decision at (1) above, and in recognising that the 
current strategy for property investment allowed the Council to act quickly and 
flexibly on a case by case basis, Cabinet members indicated that there may be 
scope to review the strategy in light of current market conditions and this would 
be subject to formal consideration in due course if appropriate.



3

Cabinet (29.6.17)

The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and concluded at 7.07 pm





NON EXEMPT

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Portfolio Holder Delegated Decision

Decision By: Councillor Richard Millard Leader of the Council and Strategy 
Portfolio

COMMISSIONING ADVICE SERVICES – AWARD OF CONTRACT

Report by: Head of Housing and Community 
Engagement   

Key Decision: No

1.0 Purpose of Report:  To obtain authorisation to award a two year contract to East 
Hampshire Citizens Advice for the provision of advice services within the District.

2.0 Decision: To award the contract to East Hampshire Citizens Advice.

3.0 Issue:  A paper (see Appendix A) was taken to Cabinet Briefing on the 23 March 
2017 to advise the Cabinet on the commissioning of advice services prior to the 
intended date of April 2018.  It was agreed that six months notice would be 
issued to the current provider and a new service to be in place from the 6 
October 2017.  The procurement process began in April 2017 with Capita 
Procurement Services advising on the process.  Procurement is now complete 
and the stand still period ended.  To ensure mobilisation of the service by the 6 
October 2017 the contract needs to be issued and signed by 31 August 2017.

4.0 Implications 

4.1 Resources: This project falls within the Council’s agreed budgetary framework 

4.2 Legal: Procurement rules have been followed in awarding this contract (see 
Appendix B for detail)

4.3 Strategy: This project supports the East Hampshire Corporate Strategy looking 
at alternative models of service delivery, moving from grant funding to 
commissioning and putting the customer at the centre of everything that we do.

4.4 Risks: Failure to award this contract will mean that there will be no advice 
services available from the 6 October 2017 for the communities in East 
Hampshire.

5.0 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 – ‘confidential’ or 
Exempt’ Information Indicator: 



NON EXEMPT

5.1 This delegated decision contains exempt information by virtue of Paragraph 3
of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972:

(ii) The following paragraphs should be marked ‘Not For 
   Publication’:  Appendix A and Appendix B

6.0 Is this an Urgent Decision?

No

Agreed Councillor Richard Millard

Date 21 August 2017

(The decision is subject to the usual ‘call-in’ process and, if not called in by the 
Governance, Audit & Scrutiny Committee, will be effective five working days after the 
date of publication, ie 29 August 2017  

Appendices: 

Appendix A – Commissioning Advice Services – Report to Cabinet Briefing March 
2017 - Not for Publication, Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) of the 
Local Government Act 1972 (Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information).

Appendix B – Procurement Process

Contact Officer:  Tracey Wood
Job Title: Head of Housing and Community Engagement
Telephone: 02392 446626
E-Mail: tracey.wood@easthants.gov.uk







APPENDIX B

Procurement Process

Capita procurement service advise on procurement of the service

Procurement process involved:
 Development of specification with partners (Radian Housing, Community 

First)
 Comment on specification by incumbent advice organisation (EH CAB)
 Publicising tender through the Procurement Portal
 Targeting several existing advice providers, including You Trust and Waverley 

CAB
 Tender submission, questions to tenderer and presentation
 Evaluation process – involving Claire Hughes, Tracey Wood, Julie Butler, 

Richard Millard

Outcome
 Only 1 bid submitted – EH CAB
 Bid evaluated, including questions and presentation
 Scoring determined a successful bid

Post evaluation process
31/7/17 Assessment of bids
11/8/17 End of “standstill” period
w/c 14/8 Leader and Portfolio Holder advised of end of standstill

Leader briefs Cabinet members
Leader signs Executive Decision
Legal service prepare contract





NON EXEMPT

             
EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Cabinet 7th September 2017

Local Discretionary Business Rate Relief Scheme
Brian Wood, Head of Customer Services

FOR DECISION 

Portfolio: Portfolio Holder for Finance
                 Cllr Ferris Cowper

Key Decision: Yes

1.0 Purpose of Report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval of the new Local 
Business Rate Relief Scheme

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 That Cabinet approves the new Local Business Rate Relief Scheme

3.0 Subject of Report 

3.1 At the Budget on 8 March 2017, the Chancellor announced that the 
Government would make available a discretionary fund of £300 million 
over four years from 2017/18 to support those businesses that face the 
steepest increases in their business rates bills as a result of the 
revaluation. The Chancellor stated that local government is best placed 
to determine how this fund should be targeted and administered to 
support those businesses and locations within their area that are in the 
greatest need. 

3.2 The Government’s intention is that every billing authority in England will 
be provided with a share of the £300 million to support their local 
businesses. This will be administered through the Council’s 
discretionary relief powers under section 47 of the Local Government 
Act 1988.

3.3 The Government believes that local authorities are best placed to judge 
the particular circumstances of local ratepayers and direct the funding 
where it is most needed to support local economies. The Government 



has allocated the available funding to each billing authority area based 
on assumptions about how authorities will target their relief scheme.

3.4 A Grant of £723k has been confirmed by the Department of 
Communities and Local Government (DCLG).

Amount of discretionary grant by year
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 Total

East Hampshire £422k £205k £84k £12k £723k

3.5 It has been verified with the DCLG that any moneys unspent will be 
returned. The scheme has been drafted in a way that more funds will 
be granted and less money will be returned, therefore benefiting the 
Ratepayers of East Hampshire.

3.6 A one off New Burdens Grant of £12k has been confirmed to cover 
administrative costs of this scheme and the two other new schemes, 
Pub Relief and Supporting Small Business Relief. 

4.0 Subject of the Report

4.1 Please see attached new Scheme document – Appendix 1

4.2 The new Scheme is aimed at Ratepayers where the Business Rates 
has increased by over £600pa in 2017, (when compared to the 
Business Rates in 2016/17)  due to the revaluation in April 2017.

4.3 There are some exceptions and restrictions which are detailed in the 
new Scheme document.

4.4 In addition to this new Local Relief further help is available to small 
businesses negatively impacted by the recent revaluation. 

4.5 The Government has a Transitional Relief Scheme which limits the 
increase of Business Rates between the two Valuation lists over a 
number of years until the full amount is charged. The scheme is 
automatic.

4.6 Ratepayers who occupy one business premises in England which has 
a rateable value up to £12,000 will receive a 100% discount. 
Ratepayers with a rateable value of £12,001 to £15,000, can now 
qualify for Small Business Relief on a sliding scale from 100% to 0%.

4.7 The Revenues team identified ratepayers who may now meet the new 
criteria (rateable value between £12,000 and £15,000) and enclosed 
an application form in their annual bill.



4.8 Any new ratepayer coming into the area, who may qualify for Small 
Business Relief, is sent an application form with their Rates Bill. Staff 
also look at Small Business Relief, when in conversation with a 
ratepayer.

4.9 The Council occasionally reduce a bill because of hardship. When 
deciding on this, we will consider things such as the benefits the 
business provides to the local community and its profitability.

5.0 Implications 

5.1 Resources: 

The financial cost of the scheme is covered by the central government 
grant. New software is covered in full by the new burdens grant and the 
administration will be absorbed by the Revenues Team.

5.2 Legal:

Legal advice has been taken with regards to the State Aid declaration 
and the delegation of authority. 

5.3 Strategy: 

The new scheme would support the Council’s strategy around 
‘Economic Growth’. 

5.4 Risks: 

There is a financial risk that we could over or underspend on the 
scheme. Mitigation has been put in place to control the spending within 
the scheme document.

5.5 Communications:

Detailed covering communications will be sent to each Ratepayer who 
is entitled to relief.

5.6 For the Community:

The Scheme will financially benefit the local business community

6.0     Consultation 

Business and Economy Manager
Monitoring Officer and Lead Solicitor
Revenues Manager 
Kevin Harlow Corporate Accountancy Team Leader
Cllr Watts 
Cllr Butler 



Appendices: 

Appendix 1 - Local Business Rate Relief Scheme

Background Papers: 

Consultation documents and Grant distribution

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/discretionary-business-rates-
relief-scheme

Agreed and signed off by:

Legal Services: 16th August 2017
Director of Strategy and Governance: 15th August 2017
Portfolio Holder: 29th August 2017

Contact Officer: Brian Wood
Job Title: Head of Customer Services
Telephone: 01730 234150
E-Mail: brian.wood@eastshants.gov.uk



East Hampshire District Council 
Local Discretionary Business Rate Relief Scheme 

Introduction 
This document sets out the Council’s local discretionary business rate relief scheme for 
the financial years 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2021. 

1) The Local Discretionary Relief Scheme 

The Local Discretionary Business Rate Relief Scheme will apply for the four years 1 
April 2017 to 31 March 2021 only. Under the scheme relief will only be provided where a 
qualifying ratepayer’s bill has increased by over £600, due to the 2017 revaluation 
subject to exclusions below. 

The amount of relief will be recalculated each year, due to demand and annual allocated 
grant. It is therefore likely that the minimum threshold and percentage of relief could 
change from year to year to meaningfully target businesses where the revaluation has 
had a greater impact.

The recalculation will be delegated to the Head of Customer Services in consultation 
with the Finance Portfolio Holder and Head of Finance. 

The Relief the Council is able to offer under the scheme will be limited to the funding 
provided as detailed below;- 

Amount of discretionary grant
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 Total

East Hampshire £422k £205k £84k £12k £723k

Where a qualifying ratepayer’s 2017/18 rates bill is reduced for any of the following 
reasons, the amount of their relief will be reduced or removed accordingly: 

 a reduction in rateable value in the 2017 rating local list 

 the application of any additional rate relief or exemption 

 vacation of the property by the occupier 

 any other reason

There will be no recalculation of relief if there is a change in the 2016/17 rate liability. 
Also no further relief will be granted if the 2017 rateable value is increased after 1st April 
2017.

 



2) Further Exclusions - Where any of the following apply, the ratepayer will not be 
eligible for local discretionary business rate relief: 

 The Ratepayer is a ‘precepting’ authority i.e. a body that levy’s Council Tax such 
as Hampshire County Council, Police Authority etc. 

 Ratepayers in receipt of Supporting Small Business Relief

 Ratepayers occupying properties after 31 March 2017 

 Properties which were not on the rating list as at 1 August 2017

 Properties which are unoccupied. 

 The Ratepayer is entitled to full Small Business Rate Relief

 The Ratepayer is entitled to Enterprise Relief

 The increase in Rates between 2016/17 and  2017/18 is less than £600 pa

 Where the award of relief would not comply with EU law on State Aid. 

 No relief will be backdated to prior years

3) Calculation of Relief and Process

Relief will be calculated as a percentage (30% in year 1) of the difference between the net 
rates bills for 2016/17 and 2017/18.

Example

2016 RV 2017 RV RV 
Increase

% 
increase

2016 amount 
charged

2017 amount 
charged

Increase 30% 
Reduction 
on increase 

Revised Rates Bill 
for 2017

45,750 65,000 19,250 42.08% £22,737.75 £26,254.09 £3516.34 £1054.90 £25,199.19

Process

Wherever possible, Ratepayers will be identified through our Business Rates Database and 
the relief calculated and allocated automatically without the requirement of an application 
form.

A revised Business Rate bill will sent to the ratepayer together with a covering letter detailing 
the relief, explaining that the relief is for one year and requesting confirmation from the 
Ratepayer where the granting of the relief would not comply with EU Law on State Aid.

As detailed in part 1, the amount of relief will be recalculated each year, due to demand 
and annual allocated grant. The recalculation will be delegated to the Head of Customer 
Services in consultation with the Finance Portfolio Holder and Head of Finance. 

This is a discretionary scheme and therefore there is no right of appeal on any decision 
made.



End of Year

As any unspent grant will be returned to Central Government, a review will be undertaken 
each February to identified any qualifying cases that would benefit from additional support. 
This will ensure that the maximum benefit can be achieved under the scheme. This review 
will be delegated to the Head of Customer Services in consultation with the Finance Portfolio 
Holder and Head of Finance.

Notice Periods 
As the funding decreases substantially across the 4 years any award will be for the 
maximum of one year and it will be made clear to the rate payer that their support will be 
revoked after a maximum of 12 months. 

This is in accordance with the Non-Domestic Rating (Discretionary Relief) Regulations 1989 
(S.I. 1989/1059)




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Delegated Decisions
	APPENDIX A
	APPENDIX B

	6 Local Discretionary Business Rate Relief Scheme
	Disc Rate Relief Scheme 2017 EHDC - July 2017v2


